
 

 

417 Poplar St. Lancaster, PA 17603 
Page 1 of 8 

SoWe Lead Board Meeting 
Agenda 

September 23, 2019 5:30 PM 

St. Joseph Church 

St. Francis Room  

418 St. Joseph St 

Lancaster, PA 17603 

(Audio from meetings are recorded to establish accurate meeting minutes) 

 

1. Public Comments:  Limited to items not on tonight’s agenda; limited to 3 minutes per 

speaker; limited to 2-3 people per topic 

 

2. Approval of August 26th, 2019 Meeting Minutes 

 

3. SoWe Director Report 

•  2018-19 Financial Report 
 

4. Committee Reports: 

• SoWe Talk, Communications (Nate Roach)  

• Manor St Celebration- Group Photo, Economic Opportunity (Ole Hongvanthong)  

• SoWe Walk, Neighborhood Connections (Willonda McCloud) 

• Water St. Bicycle/Pedestrian Blvd., Parks and Public Realm (Rachel Eck) 

 

5. Discussion 

• Board Training/Retreat 
 

6. New Business 

• Approval of Firework Repeal Letter (pg.8)  
  

7. Presentation: Juan Valencia Census 2020  

 

8. Community Calendar 

• Red Cross Sound the Alarm 10am- 1:00pm throughout SoWe 

• Manor St Celebration 10/4 5:30 pm – Christ Lutheran Church meeting location 

• SoWe Talk: Neighborly Communication 10/30 6pm -Lancaster Rec.  

• Fall Fest 2019 10/12 12 pm Bright Side Opportunities Center  
 

 Next Meeting:  Mon., October 28, 2019 at 5:30 p.m. in the St. Francis Room of St. Joseph’s 

Church 

 



 

 

417 Poplar St. Lancaster, PA 17603 
Page 2 of 8 

 
 

SoWe Lead Board Meeting Minutes 
(DRAFT) 

August 26, 2019 5:30 PM 

St. Joseph Church, St. Francis Room  

418 St. Joseph St, Lancaster, PA 17603 

(Audio from meetings are recorded to establish accurate meeting minutes) 

 

1. Meeting called to order by Gene Duncan at 5:30 PM 

 

2. Board Members Present: Peter Barber, Susannah Bartlett, Bianca Cordova, Christina 

DiCola, Rachel Eck, Dick Hecker, Marie King Linares, Martha Montes, Luis Ortega, Nate 

Roach, Emerson Sampaio, Audrey Skilton, Jeff Tischer  

 

Board Members Absent: Vasthi Dominguez-Acosta, Gene Duncan, Ole 

Hongvanthong, Carole Kirchner, Willonda McCloud, Stu Metzler, Christina Ortega, 

Vicente Ramos, Karen Schloer, Lt Glen Stoltzfus, Sgt. Dorsey Sumrall, Abby Tucker 

 

3. Public Comments:  Limited to items not on tonight’s agenda; limited to 3 minutes per 

speaker; limited to 2-3 people per topic 

No public comments 

 

4. Approval of July 22, 2019 Meeting Minutes 

Willonda McCloud made a motion to approve the minutes as presented Jeff Tischer 

seconded. Unanimously approved 

 

5. SoWe Director Report 

Quarterly Report and Participant Survey Results 

Participant survey results from 2019 were shared with board members. Results were also 

compared to year one numbers. This helps track neighborhood perceptions overtime and 

is required by Wells Fargo. 

WRFR Sustainability Webinar 

Wells Fargo is hosting a sustainability webinar for its grantees, board members have 

been invited to participate. The webinar will be shown at the SoWe office and board 

members are welcome to attend.  

F&M Humanities Project 



 

 

417 Poplar St. Lancaster, PA 17603 
Page 3 of 8 

SoWe has partnered with F&M to work with a group of students to develop a creative 

story telling project for the neighborhood. If board members are interested in getting 

involved, please contact Jake Thorsen.  

6. Committee Updates: 

 

Community Safety -Dick Hecker 

Officer Josiah King, PAL attended last meeting and informed the committee of all the 

possibilities for the children through PAL. Program is making an impact. Safety 

Committee is looking to financially support PAL to involve SoWe children in these 

programs. Board discussion and suggestions will be forthcoming. 

 

Economic Opportunity – Jake Thorsen for Ole Hongvanthong 

Cultivate Lancaster and Manor St Celebration  

Ribbon cutting on Manor Street to celebrate the lights and bring attention to the 

investment that has been made. This event will coordinate with the fall Art Walk, 

October 5th and 6th. Board members are encouraged to attend. Still thinking of the corner 

of Manor and Dorwart. 

 

Parking Task Force-Dick Hecker for Abby Tucker 

Residential Permit Parking has been removed on New Dorwart between W Vine and St. 

Joseph St.  The committee is received a presentation from City’s about building parking 

pads and stormwater management. More information to come soon. Entertaining the 

idea of creating a handbook for residents that have paved alleys as to how to maneuver 

the permitting process, costs, etc. 

 

Neighborhood Connections – National Night Out 

Great event despite the rain. Well attended and complimented by WGAL staff for all that 

was happening. WGAL had been driving around the whole city and were amazed by the 

community efforts. 230 backpacks were handed out to children. Kudo’s to Laurie Pagan 

for all her efforts. 

 

Parks and Public Realm – Culliton Park Partners Meeting 

Artist Salina Almanzar will be installing a mural along Water St. facing Culliton Park. 

The Parks Committee will support the mural by hosting a celebration for the unveiling. 

The committee has used some of its funding to support street trees in SoWe through tree 

tenders.  Start date for the park renovation still unsure. 

 

7. Discussion 

Culliton Park Partners Meeting 



 

 

417 Poplar St. Lancaster, PA 17603 
Page 4 of 8 

A meeting will be held with community partners and residents to discuss issues 

surrounding Culliton park, and its renovation timeline.  

Park is looking disheveled. Clarification is needed as to where responsibility notification 

about progress lays. Is it SoWe or the City’s responsibility? 

Business Development discussion  

Stu Meltzer is working to develop a contact list for businesses to get involved with SoWe. 

Stu is also working to catalog a list of past donors.  

 

8. Community Calendar 

• 600 Block of Poplar Block Party 9/7/2019 5-7 pm 

• Strawberry St Festival 9/14/2019, 4-7 pm, 0 Block of Strawberry St. 

• Lancaster Music Fest 9/14, 11am – 8 pm Buchanan Park 

• WFRF Webinar: Financial and Sustainability Planning 9/12 2pm  

• Movie Night @ Brandon Park 9/12 8pm 

• Fall Fest 2019 10/12 12 pm Bright Side Opportunity Center  
 

Gene Duncan and Peter Barber announced that the Red Cross will be hosting a free smoke 

detector installation day on 10/4 10- 1pm in the SoWe neighborhood.  

 

 Adjournment: Martha Montes made a motion to adjourn, Jeff Tischer seconded.  

 

 

Communications Committee 

September 18, 2019 6:00 PM 

753 St. Joseph St. Lancaster, PA 17603 

 

Minutes: 

 

1.SoWe Talk 
SoWe Talk: Neighborly Communications will be held October 30, 6-8pm at Lancaster Rec. The 
Committee will be reaching out to potential panelists and moderators. Jeff Tischer will be 
modifying graphics to develop a poster and flyers.  
 
2. Manor St. Celebration 
The committee will support the communication of the Manor St. Celebration and push on social 
media. The new SoWe intern will be able to assist in promotion of the event.  

 
 



 

 

417 Poplar St. Lancaster, PA 17603 
Page 5 of 8 

 
 

Economic Opportunity Committee 

September 4, 2019 8:30 AM 

Two Dudes Painting 

750 Poplar St. Lancaster, PA 17603 

 

Minutes: 

Attendees: Gene Aleci, Peter Barber, Christina DiCola, JJ Gammache, Ole Hongvanthong, 

Luis Ortega, Michael Manthei, Jake Thorsen  

 

1. CRIZ Designation for Manor St Properties 

Jeremy Young stated that the CRIZ authority has a bank of land that can be added to the 

CRIZ designation. The committee discussed added several key properties along Manor as 

W. King that align with the SoWe Revitalization Plan. The decision to op-into the CRIZ 

designation will ultimately be made by the CRIZ authority and the property owner. The 

committee agreed to recommend the additional of Manor and W. King properties to the 

CRIZ.  

 

2. On-street Parking at New Dorwart St.  

The committee reviewed a proposal to add on-street parking to New Dorwart between 

Manor and Lafayette. Jeremy Young stated the proposal came from the SoWe Parking 

Taskforce meeting. Mr. Young has reached out to Kunzler to see if the change would affect 

their operations. The Traffic Commission will review the proposal on 9/10 at 3:30 pm.  

 

3. Manor St Celebration  

The committee has scheduled the Manor St Celebration for October 4th starting at 5:30. 

The city has confirmed that it will have individuals present for the ribbon cutting. The 

committee has formed a sub-committee to plan the event.  

 

4. Art Walk Engagement 

Ole Hongvanthong stated that he would like the committee to develop an interactive art 

piece for art walk to engage neighbors. The committee brainstormed ideas and was asked 

to continue to brainstorm.  

 

5. Leads Discussion Recap 

The committee plans to ask leads for sample decoration in order to determine if 

installation is feasible. JJ Gammache agreed to print a template light cover to test as well. 



 

 

417 Poplar St. Lancaster, PA 17603 
Page 6 of 8 

 

 

Housing Committee 
September 19, 2019 

8:00 AM 

LHOP/SoWe Office 

417 Poplar Street Lancaster, PA 17603 

 

Minutes 

Attendees:  Karen Bousquet, Mike Brenemen, Jaylan Martin, Luis Ortega, Jake Thorsen, Abby 

Tucker, Allyson Wells 

 

1. Landlord Engagement Snack and Chat  

We tentatively scheduled the next Landlord Engagement Snack and Chat for November 7, 2019 

from 6:00-7:00pm. Jake is going to check with the church as to availability to host. The topic 

will be lead abatement and the presentation will be put on by representatives from the City. We 

discussed focusing more on grant money and opportunities to assist landlords with associated 

costs, rather than on enforcement.   

 

For marketing we are going to do a Facebook event and ask the City to do an email blast, 

although that will go out to all landlords (but will be worded to indicate that SoWe is partnering 

in putting on the event).  We also discussed putting together a postcard mailer.  

 

Luis suggested that for the next Landlord Snack and Chat an interesting topic could be 

opportunity zones. Since the entire SoWe area is in an opportunity zone and particularly the 

Manor Street corridor, we could partner with the Economic Opportunity committee for the next 

event. Jeremy Young was floated as a resource and a potential presenter on this topic.  

 

2. Parking Taskforce Update 

Traffic Commission approved adding on street parking on the first block of New Dorwart 

(between Manor and Lafayette). The commission also approved the removal of residential 

parking permitting on New Dorwart between Vine and St. Joseph St.  

 

The committee discussed whether we could put together a parking pad program – either 

offering grants/loans or just education materials to help residents put parking pads in. Karen 

and Allyson suggested putting together a blog post or demonstration video showing a pilot 

project so residents could learn from other residents who are going through the process.  

 

The next Traffic Commission meeting is in November.  



 

 

417 Poplar St. Lancaster, PA 17603 
Page 7 of 8 

 

3. Marketing 230 W. Strawberry St 

LHOP is wrapping up the rehab on this property.  The committee discussed doing a soft open 

house for neighbors as we did with a prior LHOP sale. The goals of the soft open house would 

be: 1) let neighbors invite people to see the house prior to it going on the market (“Choose Your 

Neighbor”), 2) show how a neighborhood property could be rehabbed, and 3) highlight the work 

LHOP/SoWe are doing with properties.  

 

We discussed marketing the open house about a week before the event by distributing 

flyers/postcards within the neighborhood. Mike suggested going through USPS’s carrier routes 

to distribute flyers, he is going to send Jake the information. We will also make a Facebook 

event for the open house.  

 

4. Displacement Discussion 

The committee discussed the ongoing challenges with rising rents and housing shortages. Jake 

suggested partnering with LHOP and TABOR on their eviction prevention initiatives.  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

417 Poplar St. Lancaster, PA 17603 
Page 8 of 8 

Letter to PA Representative: 

Hon. P. Michael Sturla 

150 E. King St. St 

Suite B 

Lancaster, PA 17602 

 

Dear, Representative Sturla, 

This letter is in opposition to the October 30, 2017 Act 43 of House Bill 542 which allows 

the sale of consumer grade fireworks to Pennsylvania residents. The passage of the bill has 

resulted in an increase usage of fireworks in the SoWe neighborhood of Lancaster City. Firework 

usage has extended well past fourth of July and they can be heard and seen going off at all hours 

of the night. The neighborhood has an extremely dense housing stock and residents fear 

fireworks discharges will result in a catastrophic event. Although the discharge of most 

consumer grade fireworks is illegal in Lancaster City, it is extremely difficult for police to 

enforce.  The passage of the bill has been detrimental to the public safety and quality of life 

residents.  

SoWe is a resident-led neighborhood initiative that aims to stem the tide of disinvestment in 

Lancaster’s South West neighborhood and create a neighborhood that is safe, clean, attractive to 

economic investment and welcoming to residents and visitors.  

SoWe respectfully requests the repeal of Act 43 of House Bill 542 to ban the sale of fireworks to 

PA state residents. Thank you for your consideration of this important issue. 

 

Gene Duncan 

SoWe Chairperson 

 

Dick Hecker  

SoWe Community Safety Chair 

 

Jake Thorsen  

SoWe Neighborhood Director 

 
 


